
Site Plan & Architectural 
Commission Agenda  

October 16, 2020  

Commission Members 

Jeff Bender, Chair 

Bill Chmelir, Vice Chair 

Jim Catt 

David Culbertson 

Paul McClay 

Bob Neathamer 

Marcy Pierce 

Milo Smith 

Chris Zelmer 

 

 

City of Medford 

Council Chambers,  

Third Floor, City Hall 

411 W. 8th Street 

Medford, OR  97501 

(541) 774-2380 

Regular Commission meetings are held on 

the first and third Fridays of every month 

Beginning at 12:00 Noon 

Page 1



   
  

   

Meeting locations are generally accessible to persons with disabilities. To request interpreters for hearing impaired or other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, please contact the ADA Coordinator at (541) 774-2074 or 

ada@cityofmedford.org at least three business days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. For TTY, dial 711 or  

(800) 735-1232. 

 
October 16, 2020      

12:00 P.M.        

Medford City Hall, Council Chambers 

411 West 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 
 

 
 

10. Roll Call 

20. Consent Calendar  

20.1 AC-20-205 Final Order for a six-phase, multi-family development consisting of 14 buildings 

with six units each—a total of 84 dwelling units. (The proposed development is running 

concurrent with LDS-20-207 and CUP-20-208.)  The property consists of a single parcel totaling 

4.76 acres, and is located at the corner of Skypark Drive and Crater Lake Avenue (1971 Skypark 

Drive). The property is zoned MFR-15 (Multiple Family Residential, 15 dwelling units per gross 

acre). (371W18AA TL 2300). 

20.2 AC-20-226 Final Order for an approximately 23,000 square foot single story trucking 

warehouse on a 1.54 acre parcel located at 1567 N Central Avenue in the General Industrial (I-

G) zoning district (372W24701). 

30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes. 

 30.1 Consideration for approval of minutes from the October 2, 2020, meeting.  

40. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience 

COMMENTS WILL BE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER INDIVIDUAL OR 5 MINUTES IF REPRESENTING A GROUP OR 

ORGANIZATION.  PLEASE SIGN IN. 

50. Public Hearings 

COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO A TOTAL OF 10 MINUTES FOR APPLICANTS AND/OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVES.  YOU 

MAY REQUEST A 5-MINUTE REBUTTAL TIME.  ALL OTHERS WILL BE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER INDIVIDUAL OR 5 

MINUTES IF REPRESENTING A GROUP OR ORGANIZATION.  PLEASE SIGN IN.  

Old Business. 

50.1 AC-20-227 Consideration of plans for the construction of a 10,680 square foot automobile 

service and repair facility for Southern Oregon Subaru.  The site consists of four contiguous 

parcels totaling approximately 1.56 acres, located west of Biddle Road and fronting Lawnsdale 

Road (Addresses: 952, 924, 908 and 898 Lawnsdale Road).  The site is zoned I-G (General 

Industrial). (372W12D TL 7000, 7100, 7200, and 7300).  Applicant: Southern Oregon Subaru; 

Agent: J.B. Steele, Inc.; Planner: Dustin Severs 

SITE PLAN & ARCHITECTURAL 
COMMISSION AGENDA 

Page 2

mailto:ada@cityofmedford.org


Site Plan & Architectural Commission Agenda 
October 16, 2020 

 
 

Page 2 of 2  
 

 

60. Written Communications None.  

70. Unfinished Business  None. 

80. New Business  None. 

90. Report from the Planning Department  

100. Messages and Papers from the Chair 

110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission 

120. Adjournment  
 
 

 

Page 3



 

 

 

BEFORE THE MEDFORD SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION 
STATE OF OREGON, CITY OF MEDFORD 

 
IN THE MATTER OF SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION   ) 
FILE AC-20-205 APPLICATION FOR PROJECT REVIEW SUBMITTED    ) ORDER 
BY WINDY CREEK LLC.    ) 
 
ORDER granting approval of a request of File No. AC-20-205, as follows: 
 
Consideration of plans for a six-phase, multi-family development consisting of 14 buildings with six units 
each—a total of 84 dwelling units. (The proposed development is running concurrent with LDS-20-207 and 
CUP-20-208.)  The property consists of a single parcel totaling 4.76 acres, and is located at the corner of 
Skypark Drive and Crater Lake Avenue (1971 Skypark Drive). The property is zoned MFR-15 (Multiple Family 
Residential, 15 dwelling units per gross acre). (371W18AA TL 2300). 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The Site Plan and Architectural Commission has duly accepted the application filed in accordance with the 
Land Development Code, Section 10.200. 
 
2. The Site Plan and Architectural Commission has duly held a public hearing on the matter described above, 
with a public hearing a matter of record of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission on October 2, 2020. 
  
3.  At the public hearing on said application, evidence and recommendations were received and presented by 
the developer and Planning Department staff; and  
 
4. At the conclusion of said public hearing, after consideration and discussion, the Site Plan and Architectural 
Commission, upon a motion duly seconded, granted approval and directed staff to prepare a final order with 
all conditions and findings set forth for the granting of approval. 
 
THEREFORE LET IT BE HEREBY ORDERED that the application of Windy Creek LLC, stands approved subject to 
compliance with the conditions stated in the Commission Report dated October 2, 2020. 
 
AND LET IT FURTHER BE OF RECORD that the action of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission approving 
this application is hereafter supported by the findings referenced in the Commission Report dated October 2, 
2020. 

 
BASED UPON THE ABOVE, it is the finding of the Medford Site Plan and Architectural Commission that the 
project is in compliance with the criteria of Section 10.200(E) of the Land Development Code. 
 
Accepted and approved this 16th day of June, 2020. 
 

MEDFORD SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION 
 

                                    
____________________________________________ 

                   Site Plan and Architectural Commission Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary   

Page 4



COMMISSION REPORT 
for a type-III quasi-judicial decisions: Site Plan & Architectural Review 

Project Creekside Village  

 Applicant: Windy Creek, LLC; Agent: Joe Slaughter Consulting 

File no. AC-20-205 

Date October 2, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

Consideration of plans for a six-phase, multi-family development consisting of 14 

three-story buildings with six units each—a total of 84 dwelling units. (The proposed 

development is running concurrent with LDS-20-207, CUP-20-208, and GF-20-288)  

The property consists of a single parcel totaling 4.76 acres, and is located at the corner 

of Skypark Drive and Crater Lake Avenue (1971 Skypark Drive). The property is zoned 

MFR-15 (Multiple Family Residential, 15 dwelling units per gross acre) (371W18AA TL 

2300).  

Vicinity Map  

  

  

 

 

 

Page 5



Subject Site Characteristics 

Zoning: MFR-15 

GLUP: UM (Urban Medium Density Residential) 

Overlay(s):  A-C (Airport Area of Concern) 

Use(s): vacant 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North  Zone:   SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, 6 dwelling units per gross acre) 

& I-L (Light Industrial) 

  Use(s): Residential 

South   Zone:   MFR-20 (Multiple Family Residential, 20 dwelling units per gross 

acre) 

  Use(s):  Residential  

East  Zone:    SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, 4 dwelling units per gross acre) 

  Use(s):  Residential  

West  Zone:    I-L 

  Use(s):  Vacant 

Related Projects  

CP-99-120 GLUP amendment from UH to UM 

AC-00-173 Multi-family project (expired) 

PUD-07-078 Multi-use PUD (terminated in 2008) 

AC-07-285 Creekside Village (expired)  

AC-09-008 Creekside Village Apartments (expired) 

LDS-20-207 LDS application running concurrent with subject request 

GF-20-288 Riparian reduction request (approved) 

Applicable Criteria  

Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(2) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

(2) The approving authority shall approve a site plan and architectural review 

application for a residential development if the proposed development complies with 

the applicable provisions of all city ordinances, or if the Site Plan and Architectural 

Commission has approved either of the following:  

(a) Any Exceptions, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.186, which resolve(s) 

any instances of non-compliance with those provisions.  

Page 6



(b) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Special Development Standards 

for Multiple-Family Dwellings, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.715A 

through 10.717.  

(c) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Development Standards for a 

Cottage Cluster Development, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.818A. 

Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. SPAC is the approving authority under MLDC 

10.110(D). 

Corporate Names 

According to the Oregon Secretary of State Business Name Registry, the principal 

place of business, Windy Creek LLC., is located in Ashland, Oregon, and its registered 

agent is Laura Knapp. 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS       

Project Summary 

Current site conditions 

The subject site consists of a single, vacant parcel totaling 4.76 acres.  The parcel has 

two street frontages: Skypark Drive, a Standard Residential street, along its southerly 

boundary; and Crater Lake Avenue, a Major Arterial street, along its easterly 

boundary.  The parcel includes significant environmental constraints: Lone Pine 

Creek, a protected waterway classified as a Riparian Corridor, traverses the parcel 

east/west; and a substantial portion of the parcel is located within a 1% floodplain.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



Previous Land Use Actions 

The subject property has received previous approvals through SPAC for a multi-family 

development; however, building permits were never issued for the development, and 

the SPAC approvals ultimately expired.  

The subject application was submitted concurrent with requests for a 6-lot 

subdivision; a Conditional Use Permit in order to construct a driveway crossing, a 

multi-use path, and drainage facilities within the riparian corridor of Lone Pine Creek; 

and a request for a 25-foot riparian reduction submitted to the Planning Director.  The 

CUP request was heard before the Planning Commission on September 10, 2020, and 

the final order approving the proposal was adopted September 24, 2020.  The riparian 

reduction request was approved by the Planning Director on September 30, 2020 

(Exhibit Q). 

Approved Tentative Plat (Exhibit F) 

 

With the subject request, the applicant is proposing a multi-family development, 

consisting of 14 buildings with six units each—a total of 84 dwelling units.  Each 

building is three stories, and will include five single-story units, and one two-story unit. 

It is the applicant’s intent to develop the property in six phases—reflecting the 

individual lots shown on the tentative plat—and, pursuant to MLDC 10.200(G)(2), has 

requested the maximum timetable of five years to develop the property.  

As part of staff’s review, the bulk standards (e.g., setbacks, lot coverage) for each 

building shown on the site plan were calculated based on the lots individually, while 

density, landscaping, and parking were calculated for the development as a whole. 

 

Page 8



Proposed Site Plan (Exhibit B) 

 

Per MLDC 10.550(3), driveway access off of an arterial or collector street is prohibited 

when a development abuts a lower-order street.  Accordingly, the submitted site plan 

shows access to the site via a single driveway off of Skypark Drive.  It is this Code 

provision—restricting vehicular access off of Crater Lake Avenue—which necessitates 

the construction of the bridge across Lone Pine Creek in order to provide vehicular 

access to the northeasterly half of the development.  The construction of the driveway 

over Lone Pine Creek—a protected riparian corridor—received approval from the 

Planning Commission as part of the applicant’s CUP request. 

Stormwater detention and water quality is proposed to be addressed via a detention 

pond located at the southeast corner of the site, within Lot 6; and a second detention 

area located to the west of the site, within Lot 2.    

The subject request is contingent on the applicant obtaining approval from the 

Planning Director for a 25-foot reduction within the riparian corridor of Lone Pine 

Creek, pursuant to MLDC 10.927.  The Planning Director approved the riparian 

reduction request on September 30, 2020 (Exhibit Q). 

 

Space intentionally left blank 

 

 

 

Page 9



Density  

Density Table 

MFR-15 Allowed Shown 

Min. /Max. Density 

10 to 15 dwelling units per 

gross acre 

 

56 min. / 85 max. 

 

 84 units 

Based on 5.64 gross acres, the Commission can find that the proposal of 84 units 

meet the density requirements as outlined in MLDC 10.714.  The required density was 

calculated based on the project as a whole, and not for each lot individually.  

Development Standards 

Residential Development Table (MLDC 10.721) 

MFR-15 Zone Allowed/Required 

 

Proposed/Shown 

 

Height 35 feet 27.4 feet 

Lot Coverage 50% 10% – 23% (15% overall) 

Setback (front) 15 feet 15 ft. 

Setback (rear yard) 10 ft. 10 ft. 

Setback (side yard) 5.5 ft. 5.5 ft. 

Setback (street side yard) 10 ft. 10 ft. 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the structures 

identified on the submitted site plan meet the bulk standards for the MFR-15 zoning 

district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code.   

Parking 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

 Required Proposed/Shown 

Vehicle Spaces 126 min. (no max) 126 

Handicap Spaces 5 5 

Bicycle Spaces 84 84 

Page 10



The submitted site plan shows a total of 126 parking stalls, including five handicap 

spaces, consistent with the requirements outlined in MLDC 10.743-751.  The required 

parking was calculated based on the project as a whole, and not each lot individually.  

As such, a shared parking agreement will be required with the final plat of the site. 

The applicant’s findings state, “Secured bicycle parking will be provided within each 

of the units”; however, the submitted floor plan does not identify areas designated 

for bicycle parking.  As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to 

submit a revised floor plan showing the units providing areas designated for secure 

bicycle parking, consistent with the requirements outlined in MLDC 10.747-750. 

Landscaping 

Frontage Landscaping (MLDC 10.797) 

Crater Lake Ave. Required Shown 

Trees 13 13 

Shrubs 80 113 

 

Skypark Drive Required Shown 

Trees 24 25 

Shrubs 153 195 

 

Parking Area Planters (MLDC 10.746) 

 Required Shown 

Trees 15 15 

Shrubs 30 103 

Total coverage 2,520 sf. 2,551 sf. 

 

The applicant’s submitted Planting Plan (Exhibit G-1) shows landscaping along the 

site’s two street frontages and parking area planters within the site’s parking area, 

meeting the minimum requirements of the Code as outlined in MLDC 10.797 and 

10.746. 

Pedestrian Access (MLDC 10.772-776) 

The site plan shows pedestrian walkways connecting to the public sidewalks along 

both Crater Lake Avenue and Skypark Drive, connecting the proposed buildings to 

Page 11



each other, and connecting to the abutting properties, all consistent with the 

pedestrian connectivity standards found in MLDC 10.772-776.   

Concealments 

Trash Enclosure (MLDC 10.781) 

The applicant’s site plan shows two trash enclosures: one located on the south side 

of Lone Pine Creek, and one located on the north side.  The applicant has also 

submitted an elevation plan of the trash enclosure, showing the enclosure 

constructed with materials consistent with the requirements outlined in MLDC 

10.781. 

HVAC Equipment (MLDC 10.782) 

All HVAC equipment is required to be concealed using the architectural elements of 

the building (i.e., roof forms, parapets, wing walls, alcoves, etc.).   The HVAC 

equipment proposed for the project is not shown on the site plan nor is it addressed 

in the applicant’s findings.   

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to submit plans showing that 

all proposed HVAC equipment is concealed consistent with the requirements outlined 

in MDLC 10.782.  

Architecture 

 

All fourteen proposed buildings have identical floor plans and dimensions.  The 

elevation plans are likewise identical, with the exception of windows being excluded 

from the side elevations of those buildings not facing the street.  (The side elevation 

of four buildings—two on the west side of the access driveway, one on the east side 

of the driveway, and one at the northeast corner of the site—will have side elevations 

facing a street, and will include at least 15% windows, as required.)  Building materials 

Page 12



include Hardi Board and batten siding and Hardi lap siding.  Wall surfaces also include 

building articulations such as off-sets, balconies, windows, and entries that break-up 

the building both vertically and horizontally.  

MLDC 10.715(A) through 10.717, establishes a series of clear and objective standards 

for multi-family developments consisting of three or more attached dwelling units. 

The special development standards—as outlined in MLDC 10.717—address building 

orientation and entrances; building mass and façade; building articulation; building 

materials; roof forms; and vehicle circulation and parking.  

Per MLDC 10.719(A)(a-b), cited below, an applicant may request an optional 

adjustment of the special development standards if it can be found that they meet 

the applicable criteria.  

 

Pursuant to MLDC 10.719(A)(a-b), cited above, the applicant has requested that the 

optional adjustments of the special development standards be applied to the project.  

The buildings meet all of the development standards outlined in MLDC 10.717(A-F), 

with the exception of three, addressed below. 

Page 13



MLDC 10.717(A) – Building Orientation and Entrances 

This standard requires that multi-family buildings be oriented to public streets and 

intersections and to have the main entrance(s) of the ground floor units facing the 

street frontage. Four of the six buildings adjacent to streets meet this standard; 

however, the building entrances for two of the buildings along Crater Lake Avenue 

are proposed to face the central parking area, and not the street.  

MLDC 10.717(F) – Vehicle Circulation and Parking  

This standard restricts parking spaces from being located within any required front 

yard area, as well as restricting automobile circulation or parking areas from being 

located between buildings and the street.  The site plan is designed generally with the 

buildings around the perimeter of the site and the parking in the center.  The two 

buildings located on Lot 3, however, do deviate from this standard, with the parking 

located between the two buildings and Skypark Drive.  The applicant’s findings state 

that this parking area “is located between the building and the street due to the shape 

of the buildable areas within the site.” 

MLDC 10.717(B)(3) – Building Mass and Façade 

This standard requires that street facing façades contain windows covering a 

minimum of 15% of the façade length for each floor level.  The submitted elevation 

plan show windows meeting this standard for the front elevations, but does not show 

windows featured on the third floor on the side elevations.  As a condition of approval, 

the applicant will be required to submit a revised Elevation Plan showing the windows 

covering 15% of the façade length on the third floor level, consistent with MLDC 

10.717(B)(3). 

**** 

Staff is supportive of the applicant’s request for the optional adjustment of the special 

development standards to be applied to the site, as allowed per MLDC 10.719, with 

the imposition of a condition of approval, requiring that the applicant submit revised 

plans showing windows covering 15% of the façade length on the third floor level for 

the buildings’ side elevations which face the street, consistent with MLDC 10.717(B)(3). 

In regards to MDLC 10.717(A) – Building Orientation and Entrances, the two subject 

buildings front along Crater Lake Avenue, a Major Arterial street which will generate 

significant noise.  The applicant is proposing to install plantings, as well as a fence, 

along the site’s frontage with Crater Lake Avenue, features which will serve as a visual 

and sound buffer.  And though this adjustment would require the buildings’ rear 

elevations to face the street, the rear elevations provide architectural elements 

similar to the front elevations (e.g., off-sets, windows, balconies, etc.).  Given the 

circumstances, it is staff’s view that locating the buildings’ entrances toward Crater 

Lake Avenue, from a livability/design standpoint, would be both impractical and 

Page 14



undesirable.  It is further staff’s view that this adjustment will allow the project to 

achieve a higher quality design than would otherwise result in the strict adherence to 

the standards though an overall site design which reduces visual and noise impacts 

from the adjoining street.  

In regards to MLDC 10.717(F) – Vehicle Circulation and Parking, it is staff’s view that 

the proposed site layout—locating the parking between Skypark Drive and the two 

buildings located on Lot 3—is necessary given the environmental constraints of the 

site.  Additionally, the report submitted by ODFW (Exhibit M-1) states that they would 

prefer the buildings be located to the rear, as the buildings will proved shade to the 

creek.  Finally, it is staff’s view that the requested adjustment will achieve a higher 

quality design than would otherwise result through strict adherence to the standards 

outlined in MLDC 10.717(A-F); and, therefore, meets the criteria of MLDC 10.719(A)(a-

b) for optional adjustments of the special development standards.  

Floodplain 

A significant portion of the property is located within a 1% flood Hazard Area.  Prior 

to the issuance of building permits, the applicant will be required to comply with all 

requirements outlined in the Floodplain report (Exhibit O).  

Landscape buffering 

Per MLDC 10.790, bufferyards are utilized in order to minimize potential conflicts 

caused by types and intensity of uses on adjacent properties.  The subject site abuts 

the SFR-6 zoning district along approximately 333 feet of a single parcel (Tax lot 800), 

located along the site’s northwesterly boundary. 

 

Per MLDC 10.790-3, a Type A bufferyard—consisting of a six-foot concrete or masonry 

wall and ten feet of landscaping—is required along the site’s boundary abutting the 

SFR-6 zoning district.  The applicant’s site plan notates the construction of a six-foot 

masonry wall and the installation of ten feet of landscaping along the site’s boundary 

with tax lot 800, consistent with the requirements outlined in MLDC 10.790. 

 

 

Page 15



Riparian reduction request 

The site is encumbered by the presence of Lone Pine Creek, which traverses the 

property east/west, effectively splitting the property into two tracts of land.  Per MLDC 

10.922, Lone Pine Creek is identified as a protected waterway within the City.  As such, 

a 50-foot riparian corridor—measured horizontally from the top-of-bank on both 

sides of the creek—is applied to the section of Lone Pine Creek running through the 

site, restricting development within this established corridor.   

 

 

Per MLDC 10.925, water-related or water-dependent uses—including drainage 

facilities, crossings, and multi-use paths—are allowed within a riparian corridor 

subject to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  The applicant requested a 

CUP in order to construct a driveway crossing, drainage utilities, and a multi-use path 

within the riparian corridor of Lone Pine Creek.   The Planning Commission approved 

the CUP request at the meeting held on September 24, 2020.  

In addition to the CUP request, the applicant has requested—pursuant to MLDC 

10.927—a 25-foot reduction in order to construct areas of the development within 

the outer 25-feet of the required 50-foot riparian corridor.  A request to reduce or 

deviate from a riparian corridor boundary, however, is a Type-I ministerial decision 

rendered by the Planning Director, and is a separate from the subject SPAC request.   

As required per MLDC 10.927, the applicant has submitted Planting and Irrigation 

Plans (Exhibit G-1) intended to show the restoration and enhancement of the riparian 

area.  These plans were also forwarded to the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife 

(ODFW) for a habitat mitigation recommendation.  Staff received a report from ODFW 

Page 16



(Exhibit M-1) on September 30, 2020.  In the report, ODFW forwarded a favorable 

recommendation for the proposed reduction.   

On September 30, 2020, the applicant received approval for the requested 25-foot 

riparian reduction from the Planning Director (Exhibit Q).  

Facility Adequacy 

Per the agency comments submitted to staff, (Exhibits J-L), it can be found that there 

are adequate facilities to serve the future development of the site. 

Other Agency Comments 

Parks Department (Exhibit P) 

The applicant has also been working with the Parks Department concerning the 

future installation of the multi-use path identified in the City’s Leisure Services Plan.  

On September 3, 2020, staff received a memo from the Parks Department, stating 

that the applicant will install a soft-surface trail within the riparian corridor.  Details 

concerning the location of the path are still being worked out with the Parks 

Department. 

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to comply with all 

requirements of the Parks Department, prior to the issuance of a building permit for 

vertical construction.    

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from a committee, such as BPAC.  

Neighbor Comments 

Staff received a letter on August 27, 2020, from a neighboring business, Winkelman-

Bruce & Traux, LLP, an accounting firm located at 2732 American Way.  In the letter, 

Ms. Winkelman-Bruce requests that parking be disallowed on Skypark Drive on one 

side of the street, and that parking be disallowed the last few feet leading to the 

corner of Skypark Drive and Crater Lake Avenue.  

Citizen requests pertaining to traffic matters—including requests to eliminate public 

on-street parking spaces—are heard by the Traffic Coordinating Committee (TCC), 

which provides recommendations to the Public Works Department.  The subject letter 

has been forwarded to the Public Works Department for processing, and the 

neighbor has been informed.  

 

 

Page 17



DECISION  

At the public hearing held on October 2, 2020, the Commission voted unanimously to 

approve the request.  During the hearing, staff added two new exhibits into the 

record: A revised Floor Plan, included as Exhibit C-1; and a revised Elevation Plan, 

included as Exhibit D-1.  The two revised plans were submitted by the applicant in 

response to a condition of approval requiring that the plans show windows on the 

third floor of the buildings, as required per the Special Development standards for 

multi-family buildings.  As the revised plans satisfied the condition, the Commission 

struck the condition.   

The two new exhibits (Exhibits C-1 & D-1) and the revised Conditions of Approval 

(Exhibit A-2) are included in this Commission Report.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

 Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(2) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

(2) The approving authority shall approve a site plan and architectural review 

application for a residential development if the proposed development complies with 

the applicable provisions of all city ordinances, or if the Site Plan and Architectural 

Commission has approved either of the following:  

(a) Any Exceptions, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.186, which resolve(s) 

any instances of non-compliance with those provisions.  

This criterion is not applicable.  

(b) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Special Development Standards 

for Multiple-Family Dwellings, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.715A 

through 10.717.  

Based on the applicant’s site plan and submitted findings, the Commission can 

find that, with the imposition of conditions outlined in Exhibit A, the requested 

adjustment from the special development standards will achieve an 

equivalent or higher quality design than would otherwise result through strict 

adherence to the standards outlined in MLDC 10.717(A-F), and therefore, 

meets the criteria of MLDC 10.719 for optional adjustments of the special 

development standards.  

(c) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Development Standards for a 

Cottage Cluster Development, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.818A. 

This criterion is not applicable.  

 

 

Page 18



ACTION TAKEN 

Adopted the findings as recommended by staff and directed staff to prepare a Final 

Order for approval of AC-20-205 per the Commission Report dated October 2, 2020, 

including: 

 Exhibits A-2 through Q; 

 The granting of the maximum timetable of five years for the project to be 

developed in phases, pursuant to MLDC 10.200(G)(2); and,  

 The approval of optional adjustments of special development standards, 

pursuant to MLDC 10.719. 

EXHIBITS 

A-2 Conditions of Approval, drafted October 2, 2020. 

B Site Plan, submitted September 21, 2020. 

C-1 Floor Plans, submitted October 1, 2020. 

D-1  Elevations, submitted October 1, 2020. 

E Trash enclosure elevation, submitted September 8, 2020. 

F Applicant’s Approved Tentative Plat, submitted July 13, 2020. 

G-1 Applicant’s Planting & Irrigation Plans (8 of 8), submitted September 26, 2020. 

H Applicant’s Site Work and Protection Plan, submitted July 13, 2020.  

I Applicant’s Findings, submitted July 13, 2020. 

J Public Works Report, received August 25, 2020. 

K Fire Department Report, received August 19, 2020. 

L Medford Water Commission report/map, received August 19, 2020. 

M-1 Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife report, received September 30, 

2020. 

N Neighbor Letter, received August 27, 2020.  

O Floodplain report, received September 2, 2020. 

P Parks Department report, received September 3, 2020.  

Q Riparian Reduction report (GF-20-288), approved on September 30, 2020. 

 Vicinity Map 

 

SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION:                  

          

    

___________________________________________________ 

JEFF BENDER, CHAIR  

 

 

SPAC AGENDA          
         SEPTEMBER 18, 2020 

Page 19



         OCTOBER 2, 2020 

         OCTOBER 16, 2020 
                 

Page 20



EXHIBIT A-2 

Creekside Village 

AC-20-205 

Conditions of Approval 

October 2, 2020 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit J).

2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit L).

3. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit K).

4. Comply with all requirements of the Parks Department (Exhibit P).

5. Comply with all requirements outlined in the floodplain report (Exhibit O).

6. Submit plans showing that all HVAC equipment will be concealed, consistent with the

requirements outlined in MDLC 10.782.

7. Submit revised floor plans showing the units providing areas designated for secure

bicycle parking, consistent with the requirements outlined in MLDC 10.747-750.

Page 21



D/W

D/W

D/W

WH

R
E
F.

WH

REF.

WH

REF.

4080

5040LS30683036LS3036LS30685040LS

2
8
6
8

5040LS30685040LS

2868

5040LS

5
0
4
0
L
S

5
0
4
0
L
S

5068

5
0
4
0
L
S

5
0
4
0
L
S

5068

2
6
6
8

2
8
6
8

2
8
6
8

2
6
6
8

6
0
6
8

2
8
6
8

6
0
6
8

2868 2868

5040LS

5036LS 5036LS

5
0
6
8

2868

6
0
6
8

5068

2
8
6
8

2
6
6
8

UP

30X22
CRAWL
ACCESS

30X22
CRAWL
ACCESS

74'

10'-8"
2'

12'-4"24'

24' 25'

1
'-
8
"

3'-7 1/2"3'-4"

2'-8" 1'-3" 1'-3" 4'

2
'

4
'

5
'

3
'-
0
 1

/2
"

2' 4'-6" 2'

3
'-
4
"

2
'

5
'-
6
"

2
'

5
'

3
'-
8
"

3
'-
5
 1

/2
"

3
'-
6
"

10'-8"
2'

12'-4" 24'

12'-2"12'-10"

2
'

5
'-
6
"

2
'

5
'

5
"

3
'-
5
 1

/2
"

3
'-
6
"

74'

2
'

4
'

3
0
'

4
'

4
'

4
'

2
'

13'-10" 4'-9" 14'-5" 5'-4" 13'-10"

10'-11" 52'-2" 10'-11"

Floor Plan View Main Floor

D/WD/W

D
/W

WH

WH

REF.

WH

REF.

R
E
F.

3036LS30685040LS

2
8
6
8

2
8
6
8

5040LS

5040LS30685040LS

5
0
4
0
L
S

5
0
4
0
L
S

5040LS

5068

2
8
6
8

2
6
6
8

5036LS 2030SH

6068

2868

6
0
6
8

5040LS30683036LS

5
0
4
0
L
S

5
0
4
0
L
S

5068

2
6
6
8

2
8
6
8

6068

2
6
6
8

2868

6
0
6
8

2
6
6
8

2668

2668

UP

3'-11 7/16"

1'2'5'2'

5
'

5
'-
7
"

2
'

5
'-
6
"

2
'

5
'-
3
 1

/2
"

1
 1

/2
"

1
'-
1
1
"

2
'-
3
 1

/2
"

12'-10" 12'-2" 12' 12' 12'-2" 12'-10"

2
'

5
'-
6
"

2
'

5
'-
3
 1

/2
"

3
'-
4
"

1
'-
8
"

2
'-
3
 1

/2
"

10'
10'

2' 3' 3'-1"2'3'3'-1"

3
'-
1
"

2
'-
6
"

2
'-
6
"

1
'-
5
 1

/2
"

2
'-
4
"

3
'-
3
"

3
 1

/2
"

3
'-
3
"

4
'

4
'

33'-9" 4' 16'-4"

2
'

4
'

4
'

74'

3
0
'

3
0
'

4
'

2
'

3
'

1
'-
7
"

1
'

3
'-
2
 1

/2
"

3
 1

/2
"

3
'-
3
"

10'-6 7/16"

3'-3" 5'-10"

Floor Plan View Second Floor

DN

5040RS3030LS

2
0
6
8

2
6
6
8

4
0
2
0
L
S

4
0
2
0
R

S

26
68

5036LS 5036LS

2
6
3
0
L
S

2
6
3
0
R

S

2
6
6
8

6068

2668

2668

6
0
6
8

26
68

4
0
6
8

6068

1
2

'-
9

"
9

'-
4

 1
/2

"
9

'-
1

0
 1

/2
"

24'-8"

1
0

'-
3

"
1

1
'-
1

1
 1

/2
"

9
'-
9

 1
/2

"

24'-8"
11' 2'-7" 11'-1"

3'
-2

"

2
'

7
'-
4
 1

/2
"

2
'

1
0
'-
6
 1

/2
"

11'-2" 2'-7" 11'-0 7/8"

1'

2
'-
8
"

3
'-
1
 1

/2
"

3
'

6'-0 1/2"3'

3'-11 15/16"5'-7"4'-8"1'-6"9'

9'-1" 1'

Floor Plan View Third Floor

SHEET:SCALE:DATE:

10/1/2020

1070 Plaza Ave, Ashland, OR 97520
Email: riverlanehomes@outlook.com,
Phone: 541-210-8490 CCB# 91267

CREEKSIDE VILLAGE
5 acres, 84 rental units

1971 Skypark Drive
Medford, OR 97504 A-1Printed on

"C" Paper

SHEET INFO:PROJECT INFO: 37 1W 18AA TL 2300 DRAWINGS PREPARED BY:

Floor Plans

Page 22



3036LS

3068

5040LS

3036LS

3068

5040LS

5040RS

3030LS

5040LS

3068

5040LS

5040RS

5040LS

3068

5040LS

5040LS

3068

3036LS

5040LS

3068

3036LS

Top of Subfloor - 1st Floor
0.0'

Grade Level
0.0'

Ceiling Finish - 1st Floor
9.1'

1
0
9
 1

/8
"

Rough Ceiling - 2nd Floor
18.2'

1
0
9
 3

/4
"

Rough Ceiling - 3rd Floor
27.4'

1
0
9
 3

/4
"

Highest Ridge
34.7'

8
7
 1

1
/1

6
"

Vertical board & batten siding

Vertical board & batten siding

Vertical board & batten sidingHardi horizontal lap siding

Hardi horizontal lap sidingWhite vinyl windows

White fascia trim

6/12 roof pitch

Corrugated metal porch cover

IKO Cambridge black f/g composite roofing

Steel insulated entry doors

Black metal railing

White painted porch posts / trim

1' overhang

1' overhang

3036LS

3068

5040LS

3036LS

3068

5040LS

5040RS

3030LS

5040LS

3068

5040LS

5040RS

5040LS

3068

5040LS

5040LS

3068

3036LS

5040LS

3068

3036LS

Front Elevation

2630RS

5040LS

5040LS

2630LS

5040LS

5040LS

2630RS

5040LS

5040LS

2630LS

5040LS

5040LS

Right Elevation

4020RS

5040LS

5040LS

4020LS

5040LS

5040LS

136 sf

600 sf

4020RS

5040LS

5040LS

4020LS

5040LS

5040LS

Left Elevation

5040LS

5068

5068

5040LS

5036LS5036LS

5036LS2030SH

5036LS5036LS

5036LS5036LS

5040LS

5068

5040LS

5068

5040LS

5068

5068

5040LS

5036LS5036LS

5036LS2030SH

5036LS5036LS

5036LS5036LS

5040LS

5068

5040LS

5068

Rear Elevation

Roof Plan

SHEET:SCALE:DATE:

10/1/2020

1070 Plaza Ave, Ashland, OR 97520
Email: riverlanehomes@outlook.com,
Phone: 541-210-8490 CCB# 91267

CREEKSIDE VILLAGE
5 acres, 84 rental units

1971 Skypark Drive
Medford, OR 97504 A-2Printed on

"C" Paper

SHEET INFO:PROJECT INFO: 37 1W 18AA TL 2300 DRAWINGS PREPARED BY:

Elevations

Page 23



 

 

 

BEFORE THE MEDFORD SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION 
STATE OF OREGON, CITY OF MEDFORD 

 
IN THE MATTER OF SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION   ) 
FILE AC-20-226 APPLICATION FOR PROJECT REVIEW SUBMITTED    ) ORDER 
BY JB STEEL INC.    ) 
 
ORDER granting approval of a request of File No. AC-20-226, as follows: 
 
Consideration of a proposal for an approximately 23,000 square foot single story trucking warehouse on a 
1.54 acre parcel located at 1567 N Central Avenue in the General Industrial (I-G) zoning district (372W24701). 
  
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The Site Plan and Architectural Commission has duly accepted the application filed in accordance with the 
Land Development Code, Section 10.200. 
 
2. The Site Plan and Architectural Commission has duly held a public hearing on the matter described above, 
with a public hearing a matter of record of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission on October 2, 2020. 
  
3.  At the public hearing on said application, evidence and recommendations were received and presented by 
the developer and Planning Department staff; and  
 
4. At the conclusion of said public hearing, after consideration and discussion, the Site Plan and Architectural 
Commission, upon a motion duly seconded, granted approval and directed staff to prepare a final order with 
all conditions and findings set forth for the granting of approval. 
 
THEREFORE LET IT BE HEREBY ORDERED that the application of JB Steel Inc., stands approved subject to 
compliance with the conditions stated in the Commission Report dated October 2, 2020. 
 
AND LET IT FURTHER BE OF RECORD that the action of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission approving 
this application is hereafter supported by the findings referenced in the Commission Report dated October 2, 
2020. 

 
BASED UPON THE ABOVE, it is the finding of the Medford Site Plan and Architectural Commission that the 
project is in compliance with the criteria of Section 10.200(E) of the Land Development Code. 
 
Accepted and approved this 16th day of June, 2020. 
 

MEDFORD SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION 
 

                                    
____________________________________________ 

                   Site Plan and Architectural Commission Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary   

Page 24



COMMISSION REPORT  
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan and Architectural Review 

Project Ritchie Trucking  
 Applicant and Agent: JB Steel, Inc. 

File no. AC-20-226 

Date October 2, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

Consideration of a proposal for an approximately 23,000 square foot single story 
trucking warehouse on a 1.54 acre parcel located at 1567 N Central Avenue in the 
General Industrial (I-G) zoning district (372W24701). 

Vicinity Map 

    

Page 25



Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP HI Heavy Industrial 
Zoning I-G General Industrial 
Overlay AC Airport Area of Concern 
Use Vacant 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North Zone: I-G & I-L (Light Industrial)  
 Use: Vacant  

South Zone: I-H (Heavy Industrial)  
 Use: Timber Products  

East  Zone: C-R (Regional Commercial) 
 Use: Northgate Commercial development  

West Zone: GI (Jackson County General Industrial Zoning) 
 Use: Timber Products 

Related Projects 

LDP-08-025  Two-lot Partition 
ZC-08-026  Zone Change from County Zoning to General Industrial 
PLA-20-097  Property Line Adjustment 
LDP-20-183  Land Partition 

Applicable Criteria 

Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(1) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

(E) Site Plan and Architectural Review Approval Criteria (Type II & III). 

(1) The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve 
a site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 
development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be made 
to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

 (a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 
 exist on adjacent land, and 

 (b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 
 city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 
 (an) exception(s) as provided in Section 10.186. 

Page 26



Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Site Plan & Architectural Commission is the 
approving authority under MLDC 10.108(1).  

Corporate Names 

Scott Stritenberg is listed as the Registered Agent for JB Steel, Inc. according to the 
Oregon Secretary of State Business Registry. Robert Batzer is listed as the President 
and Richard Batzer is listed as the Secretary. 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Background 

A consolidated application for a two-lot land division and zone change from Jackson 
County zoning to the City’s General Industrial (I-G) zone was approved in April of 2008. 

Current Proposal 

Land Partition 

 

Figure 1 - LDP-20-183 

Page 27



The subject site is shown as Parcel 2 above. Land Partition application LDP-20-183 
received tentative plat approval earlier this year.  

At the time this staff report was prepared, final plat for the subject site had not yet 
been received. However, as the proposed development does meet all applicable site 
development standards within the existing parcel, the recordation of the final plat for 
the partition is not necessary and, therefore, was not included as a condition of 
approval.  

Proposed Building 

 
Figure 2 - Proposed Trucking Warehouse 

The proposed development consists of a 23,048 square foot, single-story trucking 
facility. Apart from the trucking warehouse, the development will include an office 
area, break room, conference room, and bathrooms.  

The site is served by a 24-foot wide private road extending to the subject site from 
North Central Avenue. 

Development Standards 

Site Development Table  

I-G Allowed/Required Proposed 

Height 85 feet 22 feet 

Lot Coverage 90% 20.3% (proposed partition) 

Setback (front) 10 feet  100+ feet 

Page 28



Setback  
(rear and side 

yards) 
1 foot 

20’ (west – proposed partition) 
20’ (east – proposed partition) 

10’ (south) 

Minimum Lot Area 10,000 square feet 67,167 (proposed) 

Minimum Lot 
Width 70 feet 300+’ (proposed) 

Minimum Lot 
Depth 

100 feet 150+’ (proposed) 

Minimum Lot 
Frontage 

70 feet 150’ (proposed) 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the proposed 
building identified on the submitted site plan, meets the bulk standards for the I-G 
zoning district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code for the 
existing parcel dimensions, as well as the proposed parcel. 

Parking 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

 Required Provided 

Vehicle Spaces 13 24 

Bicycle Spaces 5 5 

The submitted site plan shows a total of 24 parking stalls, meeting the minimum 
required as per MLDC 10.743(1). The site plan also shows the requisite number of 
handicap spaces and bicycle spaces, as per MLDC 10.746(8)(a) and 10.748, 
respectively. 

Parking Area Planters per MLDC 10.746(3) are not required as the amount of provided 
parking stalls does not exceed 24 spaces.  

Landscaping 

Frontage Landscaping (MLDC 10.797) 

 Required Shown 

Trees 5 5 

Shrubs 23 23+ 

Page 29



The applicant’s submitted landscape plan (Exhibit F) shows landscaping along the 
site’s frontage (157 feet) with the existing private street, meeting the minimum 
required number of trees and shrubs.  

Concealments 

Trash Enclosure (MLDC 10.781) 

The applicant’s site plan shows a trash enclosure located at the northwest corner of 
the building, and the submitted findings state that a CMU wall is proposed to screen 
trash dumpster. 

Proposal meets Code requirements, as per MLDC 10.781. 

Architecture 

 

Per the applicant’s findings, the structure will consist of a pre-engineered metal 
building with an automatic fire-sprinkler system. The architectural composition of the 
proposed building mass has been articulated in a manner intended to mitigate the 
perceived mass of the structure and yet retain industrial character. A variety of 
architectural elements and exterior finish materials are intended to ‘soften’ the 
presence of the structure and to contribute appropriately to the surrounding 
architectural context. Primarily, the mass of the structure is visually softened using 
two colors of metal wall panels. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



Other Agency Comments 

Rogue Valley Sewer Services (RVSS) 

The subject property is within RVSS service area. No comments were submitted by 
the time this staff report was published. Staff received comments from RVSS on 
October 1, 2020 (Exhibit N). 

Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL) (Exhibit M) 

The DSL responded to a Wetlands Land Use Notification (WLUN) by staff with a WLUN 
Response form. The response states that the proposed project does not appear to 
impact jurisdictional wetlands, waterways, or other waters of the state. 

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from committees such as BPAC.  

No other issues were identified by staff.  

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 
exist on adjacent land;  

The Commission can find that there is sufficient evidence contained in the applicant’s 
findings and the Staff Report to determine that the proposal is compatible with the 
uses and development on adjacent land.  This criterion is satisfied.   
 
2. The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all city 

ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved (an) 
exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.253. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 
contained in Exhibit A.   This criterion is satisfied.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s findings and conclusions (Exhibit G) and 
recommends the Commission adopt the findings as recommended by staff.  

 

 

Page 31



ACTION TAKEN 

Adopted the findings as recommended by staff and directed staff to prepare the final 
order for approval of AC-20-226 per the staff report dated September 25, 2020, 
including Exhibits A-1 through N. 

EXHIBITS 

A-1 Conditions of Approval, dated October 2, 2020 
B Info & Site Plan, received July 28, 2020 
C Floor Plan, received July 28, 2020 
D Roof Plan, received July 28, 2020 
E Elevations, received July 28, 2020 
F Landscape Plan, received July 28, 2020 
G Applicant’s Findings and Conclusions, received July 28, 2020 
H Public Works Report, dated September 9, 2020 
I Building Department Memo, dated September 8, 2020 
J Fire Department Memo, dated September 8, 2020 
K Medford Water Commission Memo, dated August 27, 2020 
L Landscape and Irrigation Information 
M Wetland Land Use Notice Response, dated September 18, 2020 
N RVSS Report, received October 1, 2020 

Vicinity map  

SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION AGENDA: OCTOBER 2, 2020 
 OCTOBER 16, 2020 

___________________________ 
JEFF BENDER, CHAIR 
 

Page 32



EXHIBIT A-1 

Ritchie Trucking 
AC-20-226 

Conditions of Approval 
October 2, 2020 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit H).
2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit K).
3. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit J).
4. Comply with all conditions of the RVSS Report (Exhibit N).

Page 33



K:\DATA\AGENCIES\MEDFORD\PLANNG\ARCH COMM\2020\AC-20-226_RITCHIE TRUCKING.DOC 

ROGUE VALLEY SEWER SERVICES 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
 

  Location: 138 West Vilas Road, Central Point, OR - Mailing Address: P.O. Box 3130, Central Point, OR 97502-0005 
Tel. (541) 664-6300, Fax (541) 664-7171    www.RVSS.us 

September 29, 2020 

City of Medford Planning Department 
200 S. Ivy Street 
Medford, Oregon   97501 

Re: Ritchie Trucking (Map 372W24B, TL 701) 

ATTN:  Steffen, 

The subject property is within the RVSS service area. There is an 8 inch sewer main 
adjacent to the property along Central Avenue and a 4 inch service is stubbed to the 
development. Sewer service for proposed development can be had by connecting to the 
existing service. The sewer connection permit will be issued by the City of Medford. 
However, Sewer System Development Charges will be owed to RVSS. 

Rogue Valley Sewer Services requests that approval of this application be subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. All development must be designed and constructed per RVSS standards.
2. The applicant must submit architectural drawings to RVSS for the calculation of

System Development Charges.
3. The applicant must pay related development fees prior to the issuance of building

permits.

Please feel free contact me with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Nicholas R. Bakke, P.E. 
District Engineer 

Page 34



Ritchie Trucking
Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

¬«238

Northgate

Entrance

NorthgateEntrance

Posse Ln

Parsons Dr

Old Mcan
drew

s R
d

N Central Ave

Sage Rd

E Mcan
dre

ws R
d

4

3

2

1

AC-20-226
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 500250 Feet

Legend
Subject Area

Tax Lots372W24 TL 701

±

±

Date: 8/7/2020
Page 35



   
  

   

 

 

 
October 2 2020      

12:00 P.M.        

Medford City Hall, Council Chambers 

411 West 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 
 

 
The regular meeting of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission was called to order at noon in 

the Council Chambers on the above date with the following members and staff in attendance:  

Commissioners Present Staff Present 

Jeff Bender, Chair 

Bill Chmelir, Vice Chair 

Dave Culbertson 

Paul McClay 

Bob Neathamer 

Chris Zelmer 

 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Katie Zerkel, Assistant Senior City Attorney 

Doug Burroughs, Public Works/Eng. Develop Svs. Mgr.  

Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

Dustin Severs, Planner III 

Debbie Strigle, Recording Secretary 

 

Commissioners Absent 

Jim Catt, excused 

Marcy Pierce, excused 

Milo Smith, excused 

 

 

10. Roll Call   

20. Consent Calendar. None  

30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes 

30.1 The minutes from the September 18, 2020, meeting were approved as submitted. 

40. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience.  None. 

50. Public Hearings 

 Katie Zerkel, Senior Assistant City Attorney, read the rules governing the public hearings. 

 Continuance Request. 

50.1 AC-20-227 Consideration of plans for the construction of a 10,680 square foot automobile service 

and repair facility for Southern Oregon Subaru.  The site consists of four contiguous parcels totaling 

approximately 1.56 acres, located west of Biddle Road and fronting Lawnsdale Road (Addresses: 952, 

924, 908 and 898 Lawnsdale Road).  The site is zoned I-G (General Industrial). (372W12D TL 7000, 7100, 

7200, and 7300).  Applicant: Southern Oregon Subaru; Agent: J.B. Steele, Inc.; Planner: Dustin Severs. 

Chair Bender asked for any potential conflicts of interest, ex-parte communications, or site visits. There 

were none. 

 Motion:  Continue this item to the October 16, 2020, meeting, per the applicant’s request. 

 Moved by:  Commissioner Culbertson          Seconded by:  Commissioner Neathamer 

 Roll Call Vote:  Motion passed, 6-0 

SITE PLAN & ARCHITECTURAL 
COMMISSION MINUTES 

Page 36



Site Plan & Architectural Commission Minutes 
October 2, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 4  
 

 Old Business.  

50.2 AC-20-205 Consideration of plans for a six-phase, multi-family development consisting of 14 

buildings with six units each—a total of 84 dwelling units. (The proposed development is running 

concurrent with LDS-20-207 and CUP-20-208.)  The property consists of a single parcel totaling 4.76 

acres, and is located at the corner of Skypark Drive and Crater Lake Avenue (1971 Skypark Drive). The 

property is zoned MFR-15 (Multiple Family Residential, 15 dwelling units per gross acre). (371W18AA TL 

2300). Applicant: Windy Creek LLC; Agent: Slaughter Consulting; Planner: Dustin Severs. 

Chair Bender asked for any potential conflicts of interest, ex-parte communications, or site visits. 

Commissioner Neathamer disclosed he has an on-going working relationship with the applicant under 

a different name, and one of the project engineers, however he has not worked on this particular 

project. He believed he did not have a conflict of interest and would continue participating in this 

hearing. 

Dustin Severs, Planner III, gave a PowerPoint presentation of the September 25, 2020, Staff Report. He 

pointed out two additional exhibits. Staff recommended approval. 

The public hearing was opened and the following testimony was given: 

a)   Joe Slaughter, agent for the applicant, highlighted the history of the property and the complexity 

and cost associated with the development of it. He added they had submitted a letter of map 

amendment application with FEMA for the floodplain to correct the mapping based off of the correct 

information about what the floodplain looks like and should look like. This will show that most of this 

property is not in the floodplain. 

Mr. Slaughter stated that along the west and north boundaries there will be a six foot tall fence. Along 

the northeast side there will be a concrete buffer wall. On the east and south sides they will be installing 

a four foot tall fence. 

Chair Bender reserved time for rebuttal. 

There being no more testimony, the public hearing was closed. 

Motion:  Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare a final order for 

approval of AC-20-205 per the revised staff report dated September 30, 2020, including Exhibits A-1 

through Q, including C-1, D-1, and M-1, and also including the following: 

 The granting of the maximum timetable of five years for the project to be developed in phases, 

pursuant to MLDC 10.200(G)(2) 

 The approval of optional adjustments of special development standards, pursuant to MLDC 

10.719 

 Striking of condition #7 

 Moved by:  Commissioner Culbertson          Seconded by:  Commissioner Neathamer 

Commissioner Neathamer complimented everyone who worked on the design of this project. He said 

it was well done and something that was needed. Chair Bender concurred. 

Commissioner Zelmer wanted to know if the letter submitted by a neighbor regarding the parking on 

Skypark Drive had been addressed. Mr. Severs answered that he had called that neighbor and explained 

Page 37



Site Plan & Architectural Commission Minutes 
October 2, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 4  
 

that there is a body who hears those issues and the letter had been forwarded on to the Public Works 

Department for their response. 

 Roll Call Vote:  Motion passed, 6-0 

New Business 

50.3 AC-20-226  Consideration of a proposal for an approximately 23,000 square foot single story truck-

ing warehouse on a 1.54 acre parcel located at 1567 N Central Avenue in the General Industrial (I-G) 

zoning district (372W24701).  Applicant & Agent, JB Steel Inc.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt. 

Chair Bender asked for any potential conflicts of interest, ex-parte communications, or site visits. Com-

missioner McClay declared that his firm is working directly on this project and recused himself. 

Commissioner Zelmer disclosed that he had seen this project through ODOT but does not feel he has 

any conflict of interest. 

Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III, gave a PowerPoint presentation of the September 25, 2020, Staff Report. 

Staff recommended approval. 

The public hearing was opened and the following testimony was given: 

a) Gary Caperna, agent for the applicant, thanked Mr. Severs for his presentation and stated 

he had nothing further to add. 

Chair Bender reserved time for rebuttal.  

There being no more testimony, the public hearing was closed. 

Motion:  Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order for 

approval of AC-20-226 per the staff report dated September 25, 2020, including Exhibits A-1 through N. 

Moved by:  Commissioner Culbertson          Seconded by:  Commissioner Neathamer 

Roll Call Vote:  Motion passed, 5-0 

60. Written Communications None.  

70. Unfinished Business None. 

80. New Business None. 

90. Report from the Planning Department 

90.1 Ms. Evans stated there would be business scheduled for both the October 16, 2020, and November 

6, 2020, meetings. 

90.2 Ms. Evans revealed that October is National Community Planning Month. 

100. Messages and Papers from the Chair None.  

110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission None.  

 

Page 38



Site Plan & Architectural Commission Minutes 
October 2, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 4  
 

120. Adjournment 

120.1 The meeting was adjourned at approximately 12:39 p.m. The proceedings of this meeting were 

digitally recorded and are filed in the City Recorder's office. 

 

 

 
Submitted by: 

 

__________________________                                   ______________________________________________ 

Debbie Strigle                                                          Jeff Bender 

Recording Secretary                                               Site Plan and Architectural Commission Chair   

 

 

 

Approved:  October 16, 2020  

Page 39



STAFF REPORT  
for a type-III quasi-judicial decisions: Site Plan & Architectural Review 

Project Southern Oregon Subaru 

 Applicant: Southern Oregon Subaru, LLC; Agent: J.B. Steel, Inc. 

File no. AC-20-227 

To Site Plan & Architectural Commission for October 16, 2020 hearing 

From Dustin Severs, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date October 9, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

Consideration of plans for the construction of a 10,680 square foot automobile 

service and repair facility for Southern Oregon Subaru.  The site consists of four 

contiguous parcels totaling approximately 1.56 acres, located west of Biddle Road and 

fronting Lawnsdale Road (Addresses: 952, 924, 908 and 898 Lawnsdale Road).  The 

site is zoned I-G (General Industrial). (372W12D TL 7000, 7100, 7200, and 7300).   

Vicinity Map  

   

 

 

 

Page 40



Subject Site Characteristics 

Zoning: General Industrial (I-G) 

GLUP: General Industrial (GI) 

Overlay(s):  Airport Area of Concern (AC) 

Use(s): Single-family residences and parking lot 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North  Zone: I-G 

 Use(s): Residential 

South  Zone: Light Industrial (I-L) 

 Use(s): Southern Oregon Subaru 

East Zone: I-G 

 Use(s): Residential  

West Zone: I-L 

 Use(s): Residential 

Related Projects  

None 

Applicable Criteria  

Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(1) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve a 

site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 

development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be made 

to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

(a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and developments that 

exist on adjacent land; and 

(b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 

city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 

(an) exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.186.  

Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. SPAC is the approving authority under MLDC 

10.110(D). 

 

Page 41



ISSUES AND ANALYSIS       

Project Summary 

Current site  

 

 

The subject site consists of four contiguous parcels (each parcel is 0.39 acres) totaling 

1.56 acres.  Lots 7000, 7200, and 7300 currently have single-family residences that will 

be demolished with the proposed development.  Lot 7100 has been developed as a 

parking lot for Southern Oregon Subaru (abutting the subject parcels to the south) 

and will remain a parking area with the proposed development.   

Cross access to the abutting Southern Oregon Subaru location is provided at the 

southeast corner of lot 7100, and will remain with the proposed development.   

All four parcels front Lawnsdale Road, a Commercial Street under the jurisdiction of 

Jackson County.  

 

 

Space intentionally left blank 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



Proposal 

 

 

With the subject request, the applicant is proposing to develop the property as an 

expansion of the existing Southern Oregon Subaru development located to the south.  

The development will consist of a 10,680 square foot structure used as an automobile 

service and repair facility for Southern Oregon Subaru.  The facility will consist of a 

drive thru car wash (not open to the public), several detail bays, a lube pit bay, 

multiple service bays, restrooms, storage areas, and a parts mezzanine.   

Access to the site is proposed at two driveways off of Lawnsdale Road.  Additionally, 

the site plan shows two driveways at the site’s southerly boundary, providing cross-

access to the existing Southern Oregon Subaru site.   

Stormwater detention and water quality will be addressed via bio swales proposed  

within the planter strips located along the site’s northerly and southerly boundaries.  

In order to meet building setback requirements, the applicant’s findings state that 

they will be applying for a property line adjustment.  The applicant intends to 

consolidate lots 7300 and 7200, and adjust the lot line between lots 7200 and 7100. 

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to gain approval for a 

property line adjustment consistent with the site development standards outlined in 

MDLC 10.721, prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction.    

 

Space intentionally left blank 

Page 43



Development Standards 

Industrial Development Table (MLDC 10.721) 

I-G Zone Allowed/Required Proposed/Shown 

Height 85 feet 25 feet 

Lot Coverage 90% 15% 

Setback (front) 10 feet 56 feet 

Setback (rear yard) 2.5 feet 56 feet 

Setback (side yard) 2.5 feet 22 feet 

 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the proposed 

structure identified on the submitted site plan meets the bulk standards for the I-G 

zoning district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code.   

Parking 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

 Required Proposed/Shown 

Vehicle Spaces 25 min. / 32 max. 31 

Handicap Spaces 2 2 

Bicycle Spaces 3 3 

 

The submitted site plan shows a total of 31 parking stalls provided for employees and 

visitors, including two handicap spaces and three bicycle spaces, all consistent with 

the requirements outlined in MLDC 743-751.   The site plan shows 41 additional 

spaces for the storage of the new vehicles for the automobile facility, as well as five 

electric vehicle charging stations.  

Landscaping 

Frontage Landscaping (MLDC 10.797) 

Lawnsdale Road Required Shown 

Trees 13 13 

Shrubs 63 63 

 

Page 44



Parking Area Planters (MLDC 10.746) 

 Required Shown 

Trees 6 16 

Shrubs 12 32 

Total coverage 1,000 1,026 

 

The applicant’s submitted landscape plan (Exhibit F) shows landscaping along the 

site’s frontage with Lawnsdale Road, and parking area planters within the site’s 

parking area, meeting the minimum requirements of the Code as outlined in MLDC 

10.797 and 10.746, respectively.  Since the Landscape Plan was submitted, however, 

the applicant has made minor revisions to their Site Plan, and the Landscape Plan has 

not been updated to reflect the changes.  

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to submit an updated 

Landscape Plan prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction.  

Concealments 

Trash Enclosure (MLDC 10.781) 

The applicant’s site plan shows a trash enclosure located at the southwest corner of 

the site, and the submitted findings state that the proposed trash enclosure will be 

constructed with split face concrete masonry units, consistent with the requirements 

outlined in MLDC 10.781. 

HVAC Equipment (MLDC 10.782) 

All HVAC equipment are required to be concealed using the architectural elements of 

the building (i.e., roof forms, parapets, wing walls, alcoves, etc.).  The HVAC equipment 

proposed for the project is not shown on the site plan nor is it addressed in the 

applicant’s findings.   

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to submit plans showing all 

proposed HVAC equipment concealed consistent with the requirements outlined in 

MDLC 10.782.  

 

Space intentionally left blank 

 

 

Page 45



Architecture 

 

 

The applicant’s submitted narrative (Exhibit G) describes the building’s proposed 

architecture and how it fits with and complements adjacent buildings, as the 

following: 

 

Block Length 

The block surrounding the subject parcel exceeds the maximum block length 

requirements as outlined in MLDC 10.426(1). The Planning Commission may approve 

block length and/or perimeter lengths that exceed the maximum required—as 

outlined in MLDC 10.426(C)(2), shown below—contingent on the applicant’s findings 

effectively demonstrating that certain constraints exist, making a street connection 

impractical or inappropriate.   

Page 46



The applicant is requesting relief to exceed the maximum block length standards of 

the Code.   

MLDC 10.426(C)(2) 

 

In their submitted findings, the applicant cites MLDC 10.426(C)(2)(d) above, stating 

that the subject parcels are surround by fully developed private properties, making a 

street connection impractical. 

The applicant is also requesting relief from constructing an accessway in lieu of a 

roadway, as required per MLDC 10.464.  The applicant’s findings cite MLDC 10.464)(b), 

stating that the existing fully developed neighborhood likewise makes construction 

of an accessway impractical.  

Staff concurs with the applicant’s findings, as the construction of a public street 

and/or a public accessway—pursuant to MLDC 10.426(1) and 10.464, respectively—

are impractical and/or unnecessary, as the existing development and layout of the 

surrounding area act as barriers, making street extensions in one or more directions 

impractical.  

 

Space intentionally left blank 

 

 

Page 47



Public Improvements 

Commercial Street (MLDC 10.429) 

 

Lawnsdale Road is classified as a Commercial Street.  In accordance with MLDC 

10.429, the applicant is required to install a five-foot sidewalk, and an eight-foot 

planter strip between the sidewalk and curb, along the site’s frontage with Lawnsdale 

Road.   

MLDC 10.501(A) 

 

The applicant’s site plan shows a curb-tight sidewalk with plantings located behind 

the sidewalk. In their submitted findings, the applicant argues that the proposed 

arrangement continues the pattern established in the surrounding neighborhood. 

The applicant has formally request relief, pursuant to MLDC 10.501(A), cited above, in 

order to install a curb-tight sidewalk along the site’s frontage with Lawnsdale Road, 

as shown on their site plan.  

Staff is unsupportive of the request.  Planter strips move pedestrians a safe distance 

from the edge of the roadway, and Lawnsdale Road will be the primary route for 

pedestrians traveling to and from this development. 

Page 48



As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to submit a revised site plan 

showing street improvements—including the installation of an eight-foot planter 

strip—along the site’s frontage with Lawnsdale Road, consistent with the 

requirements outlined in MLDC 10.429. 

Facility Adequacy 

Per the agency comments submitted to staff, (Exhibits H-J), it can be found that there 

are adequate facilities to serve the future development of the site. 

Other Agency Comments 

Jackson County Roads (Exhibit K) 

Lawnsdale Road is a Commercial Street under the jurisdiction of Jackson County.  As 

a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to comply with all applicable 

requirements of Jackson County Roads prior to the issuance of a building permit for 

vertical construction.  

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from a committee, such as BPAC.  

Neighbor Comments 

None 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

1. The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 

exist on adjacent land;  

The Commission can find that there is sufficient evidence contained in the applicant’s 

findings and the Staff Report to determine that the proposal is compatible with the 

uses and development on adjacent land.  This criterion is satisfied.   

2. The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all city 

ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved (an) 

exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.253. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 

applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 

contained in Exhibit A.   This criterion is satisfied.   

 

Space intentionally left blank 

Page 49



RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare a Final Order 

for approval of AC-20-227, per the staff report dated October 9, 2020, including: 

 Exhibits A through K. 

 The granting of relief from constructing a public street or a public accessway, 

pursuant to MLDC 10.426(C)(2) and 10.464(1), respectively. 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, drafted October 9, 2020. 

B Site Plan, submitted October 7, 2020. 

C  Floor Plans (2 of 2), submitted September 24, 2020. 

D  Elevations, submitted September 24, 2020. 

E Roof Plan, submitted July 24, 2020. 

F Landscape Plan, submitted July 24, 2020. 

G Applicant’s Findings, submitted September 24, 2020. 

H Public Works Report, received October 8, 2020. 

I Fire Department Report, received October 6, 2020. 

J Medford Water Commission report/map, received September 2, 2020. 

K Jackson County Roads, received August 19, 2020.  

 Vicinity Map 

 
 
SPAC AGENDA:                       OCTOBER 16, 2020 
    
                    

Page 50



EXHIBIT A 

Southern Oregon Subaru 

AC-20-227 

Conditions of Approval 

October 9, 2020 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit H).

2. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit I).

3. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit J).

4. Comply with all applicable requirements of Jackson County Roads (Exhibit K).

5. Obtain approval for a property line adjustment consistent with the site development

standards outlined in MDLC 10.721.

6. Submit plans showing all HVAC equipment concealed, consistent with the

requirements outlined in MDLC 10.782.

7. Submit a revised site plan showing street improvements—including the installation

of an eight-foot planter strip—along the site’s frontage with Lawnsdale Road,

consistent with the requirements outlined in MLDC 10.429.

8. Submit an updated Landscape Plan, meeting the minimum requirements of the Code

as outlined in MLDC 10.797 and 10.746.

Page 51



DN

MB

WM
WM

24" R.C.P.
24" R.C.P. 24" R.C.P.

MB

PP

GM

CONCRETE
PAD

CB

GATE

GATE

GATE WELL

WM

MB
SIGN

WV

FH

LP

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

PB
WM

MB MB

18" R.C.P.

SSMH
1301.3' RIM
1292.9' I.E.(W)

SSMH
1298.6' RIM
1291.6' I.E.(E)
1291.4' I.E.(W)

WELL

CONCRETE
PAD

CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

ASPHALT
CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ONE-STORY
RESIDENCE

"908" LAWNSDALE ROAD

ONE-STORY
BUILDING

"952" LAWNSDALE ROAD

GARAGE

WM

37 2W 12D
TAX LOT 7100

37 2W 12D
TAX LOT 7000

S
0
0
°0
6
'4
5
"
E
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.0
0
'

N89°48'15"E    100.00' N89°48'15"E    100.00'
N89°48'15"E    100.00' N89°48'15"E    100.00'

S89°50'15"W    99.73'S89°35'04"W    100.05'S89°48'15"W    100.00'S89°48'15"W    100.00'

S
0
0
°0
6
'4
5
"
E
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.0
0
'

S
0
0
°0
6
'4
5
"
E
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.0
0
'

A
/
C
 
D
R
IV
E

A
/
C
 
D
R
IV
E

gate

LAWNSDALE  ROAD

18" PVC

edge a/c

edge a/c edge a/c

edge a/c

U
S

ER

U
S

ER

U
S

ER

C
D

C
D

CD

F
F

F
F

F
F

3
4B

.
A

5
1

S2

3
4B

.
A

5
1

S2

68
1

T.
A

7
3

68
1

T.
A

7
3

68
1
T .
A

7
3

5
5

5
5

5
5

2

2

2

2

x x x x x x x x x x x

x

xxxx

x

x

x

x

x

xx

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

B
ID

D
L
E

 R
O

A
D

AUTONATION WAY

UP

Picnic Table

Fountain

Bench

Picnic Table

Picnic Table

Bench

DOG PARK

QUIET
LOUNGE

Quiet
Area

S
E

R
V

IC
E

  
W

R
IT

E
-U

P

SERVICE DRIVE

Express Lane

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
  W

R
IT

E
-U

P

CASHIER
/ WARRANTY

BIKE RACK

VOLVO PYLON SIGN

SOUTHERN OREGON SUBARU VOLVO
MITSUBISHI READER BOARD SIGN

MITSUBISHI PYLON SIGN

TRASH AND
EQUIP. ENCLOSURE

SUBARU LANDSCAPED
DISPLAY RAMP

FUTURE SERVICE STALLS

VEHICLE DISPLAY

VEHICLE DISPLAY

VEHICLE DISPLAY

VEHICLE DISPLAY

RECOMMENDATION:  SWITCH
SUBARU AND MITSUBISHI SIGN
LOCATIONS.

MECH.

TOOL ROOM

PARTSWARRANTY

PARTS STORAGE

Landscaping

OFFICE 2

FILES

STORAGE

CONFERENCE ROOM

OFFICE MANAGER

Landscaping

OFFICE 1

BREAK RM.

WOMEN

SERVICE R.R.

BREAK RM.

Roof Access
Metal Ladder for

SERVICE AREA

TECHNICIAN'S

PARTS

PARTS DEPARTMENT

MANAGER
SERVICE

DISPATCH

Service Menu Board

MANAGER

PARTS

JANITOR

WOMEN'S

RESTROOM

PARTS

RETAIL

MEN'S

RESTROOM

CUSTOMER WAITINGPLAY AREA

CHILDRENS

SHOWROOM

SALES

F&I 1

BREAK ROOM

MEN 1

WOMEN 1

CLOS.

COLS.

RETAILER

ENCORE

MGR'S

SALES

F&I  2

MECH.

OPEN DISPLAY

Concrete Ramp

Landscaped Area

Landscaped Area

Li
n
e 

of
 R

o
of

 O
ve

rh
an

g

BDC

NEW VEHICLE DELIVER

Community Table

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

SALES

R
ef

es
h

m
e

nt
s

SALES

SALES

SALES

F&I 3

SHOWROOM

SERVICE PARKING

UNISEX TOILET RM.

OUTDOOR SEATING

ACCESSORIES

SHOWROOM

SERVICE
CUSTOMER PARKING

SALES CUSTOMER
PARKING

141834 13

E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

8

47

VEHICLE DISPLAY 65,710 SF OF PARKING LOT / 350
SF = 188 SPACES

188

PARKING ANALYSIS
PARKING REQUIRED:  398 SPACES
PARKING PROVIDED:  457 SPACES

SUBARU PYLON SIGN

RECOMMENDATION:  SWITCH
SUBARU AND MITSUBISHI SIGN
LOCATIONS.

EXISTING SUBARU
SLATE ICON TOWER

TO REMAIN

Pe
r fo

rm
an

ce
 P

yl
on

W
he

el
St

an
d

Fe
a

tu
re

, T
yp

.

Digital Showroom
Display

Retail/Accessory
Parts Display

W
he

el
St

an
d

Fe
a

tu
re

, T
yp

.

W
he

el
St

an
d

Fe
a

tu
re

, T
yp

.

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

2

2

1 2 3 4 65 7 8

A

B

C

E

(BACK TO BACK OF CURB)

25' - 0"

BIOSWALEBIOSWALE

SERVICE PARKING

SERVICE PARKING SERVICE PARKING

VEHICLE DISPLAY

25
' -

 0
"

60
' -

 0
"

3'
 -

 8
"

D

27
' -

 0
"

22
' -

 4
"

10
9'

 -
 0

"
19

' -
 4

"

11
' -

 0
"

15
' -

 1
0 

3/
4"

13
' -

 4
 1

/2
"

10' - 4"

27
' -

 0
"

17
' -

 0
"

17
' -

 0
"

23' - 0 1/4" 19' - 6" 17' - 0" 24' - 0" 19' - 0" 19' - 0" 19' - 0" 24' - 0" 17' - 0"

6' - 0" 6' - 0"

17
' -

 0
"

17
' -

 0
"SERVICE PARKING

PROPERTY 
CORNER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

BIO-SWALE BIO-SWALE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY 
CORNER

PROPERTY LINE

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 S

ID
E
W

A
LK

PROPERTY 
CORNER 

C
H

A
R

G
IN

G
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

6' - 0"

6' - 0"
6' - 0"

PROPERTY 
CORNER 

LAWNSDALE RD. 

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

400' - 0"

169' - 0"25' - 0"177' - 11 1/2"

(BACK TO BACK OF CURB)

24' - 0"

4' - 0"

3' - 8"

17
0'

 -
 0

"

BIOSWALE

(FROM BACK OF CURB)

20' - 9 3/4"

27
' -

 0
"

FUTURE DRIVE 
APPROACH

FUTURE
DRIVE 

APPROACH

25' - 0"

25' - 0"

RIDGE IN A.C. PAVEMENT

S
LO

P
E

 T
O

 B
IO

S
W

A
LE

S
LO

P
E

 T
O

 B
IO

S
W

A
LE

S
LO

P
E

 T
O

 B
IO

S
W

A
LE

S
LO

P
E

 T
O

 B
IO

S
W

A
LE

S
LO

P
E
 T

O
 B

IO
S

W
A

LE

S
LO

P
E
 T

O
 B

IO
S

W
A

LE

32' - 0"

11
' -

 0
"

27
' -

 6
 1

/4
"

01

02

E1 09 U1 U2 E2U3

04

050505

05

60
' -

 0
"

(FROM PROPERTY LINE)

24' - 5 1/2"

100' - 0"100' - 0"100' - 0"100' - 0"

134' - 1"32' - 11"38' - 8"

400' - 0"

04

U3

S
LO

P
E
 T

O
 B

IO
S

W
A

LE

S
LO

P
E
 T

O
 B

IO
S

W
A

LE

04

01

04

05 05 05

03

U3

U1

178' - 2"

06

07

04

03

04

E3

E4

E5

E4

09

08

E6

E7

10 11 U3

CONCRETE SIDEWALKCONCRETE SIDEWALK

8' - 0
"

5' - 0
"

R
 2

0'
 - 

0"

12

R
 2

0' - 0
"

EXIST. F.H.

EXIST. STORM
DRAIN

EXIST. STORM 
DRAIN

EXISTING STORM
SEWER 

EXISTING 
MANHOLE

EXISTING STORM 
SEWER LINE

SEWER WATER
CONTROL STRUCTURE

SEWER WATER
CONTROL STRUCTURE

SEWER WATER
CONTROL STRUCTURE

PRELIMINARY

Web:

Gary R Caperna

Medford, Oregon
5247

SHEET TITLE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

ISSUE:

APPROVED

STAMP

PLOT DATE:

P.O. Box 4460 . 190 North Ross Lane
Medford,Oregon 97501

Office: 541.773.8325 . Fax: 541.773.6523
CCB No. 132902

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5

D

C

B

A

3 4 5

THESE DOCUMENTS, THE IDEAS, & DESIGNS 
INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS INSTRUMENTS OF 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, ARE THE PROPERTY OF GARY 
CAPERNA, ARCHITECT, AND ARE TO BE USED ONLY AS 
PROVIDED IN THE CONTRACT BETWEEN HIM AND THE 
OWNER, AND SHALL NOT BE USED, IN WHOLE OR IN 
PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT EXPRESS 

WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION BY GARY CAPERNA, 
ARCHITECT.  COPYRIGHT 2020 BY GARY CAPERNA, 

ARCHITECT.

WWW.JBSTEELINC.COM

C
L

IE
N

T
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T
 L

O
C

A
T
IO

N
:

190 North Ross Lane, Medford,Oregon 
P.O. Box 4460 . 97501

Office: 541.773.8325 . Fax: 541.773.6523
Email: garycaperna@charter.net

Idaho AR-986158, Colorado 404248
Oregon 5247, Washington 11470

Member American Institute of Architects

21W
:\
D

e
s
ig

n
 P

ro
je

c
ts

\0
0
-C

U
R

R
E

N
T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T
S

\S
o

u
th

e
rn

 O
re

g
o
n
 S

u
b

a
ru

\S
O

 S
u
b

a
ru

 P
h
a

s
e
 1

_
1
0
0
6
2

0
.r

v
t

1
0
/7

/2
0

2
0

 2
:1

6
:2

6
 P

M

10/7/2020 2:16:26 PM

A0

SITE PLAN

#2920-20

10/07/2020

NPR

Design Development

N
P

R

GRC

S
O

 S
U

B
A

R
U

31
03

 B
id

dl
e 

R
oa

d
S

ou
th

er
n 

O
re

go
n 

S
ub

ar
u

1" = 20'-0"
1

SITE PLAN

1" = 80'-0"
2

PROJECT SITE PLAN

GENERAL NOTES: 
SITE PLAN KEYNOTES

NOTE
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION

01 8' HIGH CHAIN LINK FENCE

02 TRASH ENCLOSURE

03 8' SWING GATE (BY OTHERS)

04 PROPOSED STREET LIGHTS

05 WALL PACK LIGHT

06 WATER LINE (TO BUILDING)

07 SANITARY SEWER (TO BUILDING)

08 CONCRETE SLAB (TO HOUSE CHANGING STATION EQUIPMENT)

09 8' SLIDING GATE (BY OTHERS)

10 WATER METER (FOR LANDSCAPE)

11 WATER METER (DOMESTIC)

12 MAN GATE (BY OTHERS)

12" = 1'-0"
3

WEST 3D VIEW_09/25/2020

12" = 1'-0"
4

EAST 3D VIEW_09/25/2020

EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS KEYNOTES
NOTE

NUMBER
DESCRIPTION

E1 EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE (TO REMAIN)

E2 EXISTING SWING GATE TO REMAIN

E3 EXISTING ROAD

E4 EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE TO BE DEMO (RE-USE FENCE WHERE POSSIBLE)

E5 EXISTING CATCH BASIN

E6 EXISTING STORM DRAIN

E7 EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

UTILITIES KEYNOTES
NOTE

NUMBER
DESCRIPTION

U1 EXISTING STORM SEWER LINE

U2 EXISTING MANHOLE

U3 SEWER WATER CONTROL STRUCTURE

No. Date Description

Page 52



Pa
ge

 5
3



Pa
ge

 5
4



Pa
ge

 5
5



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



LD DATE: 9/2/2020 
File Number: AC-20-227 

. 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 

Southern Oregon Subaru Service/Repair Facility 
898-952 Lawnsdale Road (TLs 7000, 7100, 7200, 7300) 

Project: Consideration of plans for the construction of a 10,680 square foot 
automobile service and repair facility for Southern Oregon Subaru. The site 
consists of four contiguous parcels totaling approximately 1.56 acres. 

Location:  Located west of Biddle Road and fronting Lawnsdale Road (Addresses: 952, 
924, 908 and 898 Lawnsdale Road). The site is zoned I-G (General Industrial). 
(372W12D TL 7000, 7100, 7200, and 7300). 

Applicant:  Applicant: Southern Oregon Subaru; Agent: J.B. Steele, Inc.; Planner: Dustin 
Severs. 

NOTE: The items listed here shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective 
issuances of permits and certificates: 

Prior to issue of the first building permit, the following items shall be completed 
and accepted: 

 Submittal and approval of plans for site grading and drainage, and detention, if
applicable.

 Completion of all public improvements, if required.  The Applicant may provide
security for 120% of the public improvements prior to issuance of building
permits.  Construction plans for the public improvements shall be approved by
the Public Works Engineering Division prior to acceptance of security.

 Items A – D, unless noted otherwise.

Prior to issue of Certificate-of-Occupancy for completed structures, the 
following items shall be completed and accepted: 

 Paving of all on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas
 Verification by the design Engineer that the stormwater quality and detention

system was constructed per the approved plan, if applicable.
 Completion of all public improvements, if applicable.

Page 77



A. STREETS 

1. Dedications

Lawnsdale Road is classified as a Commercial street within the Medford Land 
Development (MLDC) 10.429.  The Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, 
sufficient width of land along the frontage of this development to comply with the half 
width of right-of-way, which is 31.5-feet. The Developer’s surveyor shall verify the 
amount of additional right-of-way required. 

In accordance with MLDC 10.471, the property owner shall dedicate a 10-foot wide public 
utility easement (PUE) adjacent to the right-of-way line along this Developments frontage 
to Lawnsdale Road. 

The right-of-way and easement dedications shall be submitted directly to the Engineering 
Division of the Public Works Department.  The submittal shall include: the right-of-way and 
easement dedication, including an exhibit map; a copy of a current Lot Book Report, 
Preliminary Title Report, or Title Policy; a mathematical closure report (if applicable), and 
the Planning Department File Number; for review and City Engineer acceptance signature 
prior to recordation by the applicant. Releases of interest shall be obtained by holders of 
trust deeds or mortgages on the right-of-way and PUE area. 

2. Public Improvements

a. Public Streets

Lawnsdale Road shall be improved to Commercial street standards in accordance with 
MLDC 10.429.  The Developer shall improve the south half plus 12-feet north of the 
centerline or to the far edge of the existing pavement, whichever is greater, along the 
frontage of this development.   

As an option, the Developer may elect to provide evidence of the existing structural section 
to Public Works for consideration in order to determine if the extent of construction may 
be reduced.  Depending on the results, the Developer still may be responsible for the 
improvements noted above or at minimum improve the remainder of the south half of 
Lawnsdale Road from a point 1-foot inside the existing edge of pavement.  

b. Street Lights and Signing

The Developer shall provide and install in compliance with Section 10.495 of the Medford 
Municipal Code (MMC).  Based on the preliminary plan submitted, the following number of 
street lights and signage will be required: 

Street Lighting & Signage – Developer Provided & Installed: 
A. 2 – Type R-150 LED 

Page 78



Traffic Signs and Devices – City Installed, paid by the Developer:  
A. NONE 

*NOTE: Remove PPL Street Light on PPL pole #2/853. Power source should come out of existing COM pole
#3460.  (Junction box would need to be cut into existing lighting conduit). 

Numbers are subject to change if changes are made to the plans.  All street lights shall be 
installed per City standards and be shown on the public improvement plans.  Public Works 
will provide preliminary street light locations upon request.  All street lights shall be 
operating and turned on at the time of the final “walk through” inspection by the Public 
Works Department. 

The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 
removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 
coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 
remove any existing signs and place new signs provided the Developer. 

c. Pavement Moratoriums

There is no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along this developments 
respective frontages.  

The Developer shall be responsible for notifying by certified letter all utility companies, as 
well as all current property owners of parcels which are adjacent to any Public Street being 
constructed or paved as part of this project. The letter shall inform the utility companies 
and property owners of the City's street moratorium policy with respect to pavement 
cutting for future utility services. The utility companies and property owners shall be given 
the opportunity to install utility services within the right-of-way prior to paving and the 
subsequent moratorium. Notifications shall be mailed by the Developer at least 6 months 
before a street is resurfaced or rebuilt per Medford Municipal Code (MMC), Section 3.070. 
Copies of the certifications shall be submitted to the City Engineer with the submittal of the 
preliminary construction drawings. 

d. Access and Circulation

The existing block length does not meet the requirements of MLDC 10.426. The applicant 
shall provide findings addressing the exception criteria in 10.426.C.2. 

Gates shall be setback from the public right-of-way in accordance 10.732(5) 

Driveway access to the site shall be in accordance with MLDC 10.550. 

3. Section 10.668 Analysis

To support a condition of development that an Applicant dedicate land for public use or 

Page 79



provide a public improvement, the Medford Code requires a nexus and rough 
proportionality analysis which is essentially a codification of the constitutional provisions in 
Nollan and Dolan cases.  

10.668 Limitation of Exactions 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter 10, an Applicant for a development permit 
shall not be required, as a condition of granting the application, to dedicate land for public use 
or provide public improvements unless: 

(1) the record shows that there is an essential nexus between the exaction and a legitimate 
government purpose and that there is a rough proportionality between the burden of the 
exaction on the Developer and the burden of the development on public facilities and services so 
that the exaction will not result in a taking of private property for public use, or 

(2) a mechanism exists and funds are available to fairly compensate the Applicant for the excess 
burden of the exaction to the extent that it would be a taking. 

1. Nexus to a legitimate government purpose
The purposes for these dedications and improvements are found throughout the
Medford Code, the Medford Transportation System Plan, and the Statewide Planning
Rule, and supported by sound public policy.  Those purposes and policies include, but
are not limited to: development of a balanced transportation system addressing all
modes of travel, including motor vehicles, transit, bicycles, emergency services and
pedestrians.  Further, these rights-of-way are used to provide essential services such as
sanitary sewer, domestic water and stormdrain to serve the developed parcels.  It can
be found that the listed right-of-way dedications and improvements have a nexus to
these purposes and policies.

2. Rough proportionality between the dedications and improvements, and
the impacts of development.
No mathematical formula is required to support the rough proportionality analysis.
Furthermore, benefits to the development resulting from the dedication and
improvements when determining “rough proportionality” have been considered,
including but not limited to: increased property values, intensification of use, as well as
connections to municipal services and the transportation network.

As set forth below, the dedications and improvements recommended herein can be found 
to be roughly proportional to the impacts reasonably anticipated to be imposed by this 
development. 

Lawnsdale Road: 

The additional right-of-way on Lawnsdale Road will provide the needed width for a planter 

Page 80



strip and sidewalk.  Lawnsdale Road is currently a 25 mile per hour facility.  The planter 
strip moves pedestrians a safe distance from the edge of the roadway. Lawnsdale Road will 
be the primary route for pedestrians traveling to and from this development. The 
development shall construct approximately 400 linear feet of sidewalk along the frontage 
of the property.  All developments in Medford are required to construct their frontage 
sidewalk and therefore this is roughly proportional. 
 

Local street right-of-way dedication and construction requirements identified by the Public 
Works Department and required by the City are the minimum required to protect the public 
interest and are necessary for additional or densification of development in the City without 
detracting from the common good enjoyed by existing properties. Developments are 
required to provide all internal local streets and half-street improvements to abutting 
streets, including associated right-of-way dedications, to ensure that new development and 
density intensification provides the current level of urban services and adequate street 
circulation is maintained. 
 

Dedication of the Public Utility Easement (PUE) will benefit development by providing public 
utility services, which are out of the roadway and more readily available to each lot or 
building being served.  The additional traffic of all modes of travel generated by this 
proposed development supports the dedication and improvements for all modes of travel 
and utilities.  As indicated above, the area required to be dedicated for this development is 
necessary and roughly proportional to that required in similar developments to provide a 
transportation system that meets the needs for urban level services. 
 

The additional street lighting on Lawnsdale Road will provide the needed illumination to 
meet current MLDC requirements.  
 
B. SANITARY SEWERS 
 

This site lies within the Rogue Valley Sewer Service (RVSS) area.  The Developer shall 
contact RVSS for conditions of connection to the sanitary sewer collection system. 
 
C. STORM DRAINAGE 
 

1. Drainage Plan 
 

A comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site with sufficient spot 
elevations to determine direction of runoff to the proposed drainage system, and also 
showing elevations on the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted with the first 
building permit application for approval. 
 

The Developer shall provide copies of either a Joint Use Maintenance Agreement or a 
private stormdrain easement for any stormwater draining onto or from adjacent private 
property. 

Page 81



A Site/Utility Plan shall be submitted with the building permit application to show the 
location of existing or proposed stormdrain lateral/s for the site. 

All private stormdrain lines shall be located outside of the public right-of-way and/or any 
public utility easements (PUE). 

2. Grading

A comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship between adjacent property and 
the proposed development will be submitted with the improvement plans for approval. 
Grading on this development shall not block drainage from an adjacent property or 
concentrate drainage onto an adjacent property without an easement. The Developer shall 
be responsible that the final grading of the development shall be in compliance with the 
approved grading plan. 

3. Detention and Water Quality

Stormwater quality and detention facilities shall be required in accordance with MLDC 
Section 10.481 and 10.729. 

4. Verification

Upon completion of the project, and prior to certificate of occupancy of the building, the 
Developer’s design Engineer shall verify that the construction of the stormwater quality and 
detention system was constructed per plan.  Verification shall be in writing and submitted 
to the Engineering Division of Public Works.  Reference Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality 
Design Manual, Appendix I, Technical Requirements. 

5. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control

All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion 
Prevention and Sediment Control Plan.  Developments that disturb one acre and greater 
shall require a 1200C permit from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  Erosion 
Prevention and Sediment Control Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with 
the project plans for development.  All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or 
properly stabilized prior to certificate of occupancy.  

D. GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. Design Requirements and Construction Drawings

All public improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the “Engineering Design 
Standards for Public Improvements”, adopted by the Medford City Council. Copies of this 
document are available in the Public Works Engineering office. 

Page 82



2. Construction Plans

Construction drawings for any public improvements for this project shall be prepared by a 
professional Engineer currently licensed in the State of Oregon, and submitted to the 
Engineering Division of Medford Public Works Department for approval. Construction 
drawings for public improvements shall be submitted only for the improvements to be 
constructed with each phase.  Approval shall be obtained prior to beginning construction. 
Only a complete set of construction drawings (3 copies) shall be accepted for review, 
including plans and profiles for all streets, minimum access drives, sanitary sewers, 
stormdrains, and street lights as required by the governing Commission’s Final Order, 
together with all pertinent details and calculations.  A checklist for public improvement plan 
submittal can be found on the City of Medford, Public Works web site 
(http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103).  The Developer shall pay a deposit 
for plan review and construction inspection prior to final plan approval.  Public Works will 
keep track of all costs associated with the project and, upon our acceptance of the 
completed project, will reconcile the accounting and either reimburse the Developer any 
excess deposit or bill the Developer for any additional amount not covered by the deposit. 
The Developer shall pay Public Works within 60 days of the billing date or will be 
automatically turned over for collections. 

In order to properly maintain an updated infrastructure data base, the Surveyor of Record 
shall submit an as-built survey prior to the Final Inspection and, the Engineer of Record 
shall submit mylar “as-constructed” drawings to the Engineering Division within sixty (60) 
calendar days of the Final Inspection (walk through).  Also, the Engineer shall coordinate 
with the utility companies, and show all final utility locations on the "as built" drawings. 

3. Construction and Inspection

The Developer or Developer’s contractor shall obtain appropriate right-of-way permits 
from the Department of Public Works prior to commencing any work within the public 
right-of-way that is not included within the scope of work described within approved public 
improvement plans.   

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 
stormdrain shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  
Contractors shall work off a set of public improvement drawings that have been approved 
by the City of Medford Engineering Division. Any work within the County right-of-way shall 
require a separately issued permit from the County. 

For City of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public 
sanitary sewer and stormdrain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of 
these systems by the City. 

Page 83

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103


Where applicable, the Developer shall bear all expenses resulting from the adjustment of 
manholes to finish grades as a result of changes in the finish street grade. 
 

4. Site Improvements 
 

All on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas related to this development shall be 
paved in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.746, prior to issuance of certificate of 
occupancy for any structures on the site.  Curbs shall be constructed around the perimeter 
of all parking and maneuvering areas that are adjacent to landscaping or unpaved areas 
related to this site.  Curbs may be deleted or curb cuts provided wherever pavement drains 
to a water quality facility. 
 

5. System Development Charges (SDC) 
 

Buildings in this development are subject to system development charges (SDCs).  All SDC 
fees shall be paid at the time individual building permits are issued. 
 
Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 
Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs

Page 84



SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Southern Oregon Subaru Service/Repair Facility 
898-952 Lawnsdale Road (TLs 7000, 7100, 7200, 7300) AC-20-227 

A. Streets 

1. Street Dedications to the Public:
 Lawnsdale Road – No additional right-of-way required.
 Dedicate 10-foot Public Utility Easement (PUE) along the frontage.

2. Improvements:

Public Streets 
 Improve Lawnsdale Road to Commercial street standards, ½ plus 12-feet.
 Public Improvement Plans for this work shall be submitted directly to the Public Works Engineering

Department.

Lighting and Signing 
 Developer supplies and installs all street lights at own expense.

Access and Circulation 
 The existing block length does not meet the requirements of MLDC 10.426. The applicant shall provide

findings addressing the exception criteria in 10.426.C.2. 
 Gates shall be setback from the public right-of-way in accordance 10.732(5)
 Driveway access to the site shall be in accordance with MLDC 10.550.

Other 
 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this frontage to Lawnsdale Road.
 Provide pavement moratorium letters.
o Provide soils report.

B. Sanitary Sewer: 
 The site is situated within the RVSS area.

C. Storm Drainage: 
 Provide a comprehensive grading and drainage plan.
 Provide water quality and detention facilities, calculations and O&M Manual.
 Provide engineers verification of stormwater facility construction.
 Provide copy of an approved Erosion Control Permit (1200C) from DEQ for this project.

 = City Code Requirement 
o = Discretionary recommendations/comments

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any 
discrepancy between the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on 
each item as well as miscellaneous requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans 
(Construction Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, 
pavement moratoriums and construction inspection. 

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



 
www.medfordwater.org 

water@medfordwater.org 

Fax (541) 774-2555     

Staff Memo 

Page 1 of 2 

200 S. Ivy Street, Room 177 

Medford, Oregon 97501 

Phone (541) 774-2430 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford 

FROM: Brian Runyen, P.E.(TX), Water Commission Staff Engineer 

SUBJECT: AC-20-227 

PARCEL ID: 372W12D TL 7000, 7100, 7200, and 7300 

PROJECT: Consideration of plans for the construction of a 10,680 square foot automobile service 
and repair facility for Southern Oregon Subaru.  The site consists of four contiguous 
parcels totaling approximately 1.56 acres, located west of Biddle Road and fronting 
Lawnsdale Road (Addresses: 952, 924, 908 and 898 Lawnsdale Road).  The site is zoned 
I-G (General Industrial).   (372W12D TL 7000, 7100, 7200, and 7300). 

MEMO DATE: August 27, 2020 LAND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE DATE: September 2, 2020 

I have reviewed the above project application as requested.  Comments and Conditions for approval are 
as follows: 

COMMENTS 

1. The applicant’s Civil Engineer shall coordinate with MWC engineering Staff for approval of water
facility plans.  Expect additional comments once water construction plans are submitted.

2. MWC has adequate capacity to serve the property with water.

3. Access to MWC water lines is available.  There is an existing 6” water line along the north side of
Lawnsdale Road.

4. MWC-metered water service is available to each existing lot from the 6” water line in Lawnsdale
Road.  (SEE CONDITIONS 2-6 BELOW)

a. TL 7300 has an existing 1” service with a 3/4” water meter.

b. TL 7200 has an existing 1” service with a 3/4” water meter.

c. TL 7100 has an existing 1” service (no water meter present).

d. TL 7000 has an existing 1” service with a 3/4” water meter.

5. The project is within MWC’s “Reduced” Pressure Zone.

6. Static water pressure is expected to be around 88 psi.  (SEE CONDITION 5 BELOW regarding
requirements for Pressure Reducing Valves.)

SEE CONDITIONS ON NEXT PAGE

Page 90



Page 2 of 2 

CONDITIONS 

1. Water facility planning / design / construction process will be done in accordance with the
current Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and
“Standards For Water Facilities / Fire Protection Systems / Backflow Prevention Assemblies”

2. Lot line adjustments described in the Applicant’s submitted narrative are required to be
completed prior to approval of this project.  (“The lot line between tax lots 7300 and 7200 will
be abandoned and the lot line between lots 7200 and 7100 will be adjusted…”)

3. The applicant’s Civil Engineer shall coordinate with MWC engineering Staff for approval of water
facility plans.  Expect additional comments once water construction plans are submitted.

4. Coordinate with MWC for metered water service.

a. Applicant shows new water meters for domestic and irrigation on the proposed
combined TL 7300 & TL 7200.  Requested meter sizes are not shown.

b. Existing metered services to tax lots 7200 and 7300 may be utilized for domestic and/or
landscape water service (if appropriately sized for project needs).

c. If either / both water meter(s) on TLs 7300 & 7200 are not utilized, they will be required
to be abandoned.

5. Installation of Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) is required per Uniform Plumbing Code.  Pressure
Reducing Valves shall be installed on the “private” side of all water meters.  PRV’s shall be
located as close as possible to the water meter serving the parcel being served.  See attached
document from the City of Medford Building Department on “Policy on Installation of Pressure
Reducing Valves.

a. REQUIRED ON ALL WATER SERVICES

6. Installation of an Oregon Health Authority approved backflow device is required for all
commercial, industrial, municipal, and multi-family developments.  New backflow prevention
devices shall be tested by an Oregon certified backflow assembly tester.  See MWC website for
list of certified testers at the following web link:
http://www.medfordwater.org/Page.asp?NavID=35

a. REQUIRED ON ALL WATER SERVICES

7. Applicant’s Civil Engineer shall coordinate with Medford Fire Department for proposed Fire
Hydrant locations for the proposed development.

8. If on-site fire hydrants are required in the proposed parking lot by the Medford Fire
Department, then installation of a looped 8-inch water line (minimum) will be required to be
installed within the proposed travel lanes within the parking lot.  Water lines shall not be
installed under proposed parking spaces or landscape islands.

9. A “Summer” fire hydrant “flow test” is required for any proposed design of sprinkler systems for
the new building.  (A Summer “flow test” shall be obtained between the months of July thru
September.) Coordinate with MWC Engineering for fire hydrant flow testing for design of
sprinkler system.

END CONDITIONS 

Page 91



1

Policy on Installation of Pressure Reducing Valves 
August 5, 2014

Section 608 of the 2011 Edition of the Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code requires a pressure
regulator (commonly called a Pressure Reducing Valve or PRV) where the static pressure in
the water supply piping exceeds 80 psi.  Although this section gives limited guidance as to
installation, it does require the device to be

“…accessibly located above ground or in a vault equipped with adequate means to 
provide drainage and shall be protected from freezing, and shall have the strainer 
readily accessible for cleaning without removing the regulator or strainer body or 
disconnecting the supply piping.”

“Accessible” and “readily accessible” are defined in chapter 2.

To assure uniform and appropriate installation of these devices within Medford, the following
standards have been agreed to by the City of Medford Building Safety Department and the
Medford Water Commission:
1. The need for these devices will be based on pressure information provided by the

Medford Water Commission, and can be verified on-site with a pressure gage.  While
factory settings of these devices may be adjusted, MWC recommends that the
regulated pressure be set no higher than 65 psi.

2. PRVs shall NOT be installed when static pressure is less than 50 psi, except for limited
specific equipment-based needs.

3. The PRV shall be installed outside the street right of way as close as practical to the
water meter.

4. No expansion tank is necessary.
5. No fixture, device or system is permitted between the meter and the PRV.
6. The PRV must NOT be direct buried nor installed in a crawl space.
7. PRVs shall be installed within a readily accessible valve box / vault following the same

standard as used for double check backflow assemblies, as follows:
“On new installations, at least 12-inches clearance will be required as per section 
603.3.4.  When replacing an existing assembly, the 12-inch clearance requirement can 
be waived as long as there is at least 3-inches clearance between the bottom of the 
assembly and the ground, and the device is tested and serviced from the top.”

Sam Barnum         
Building Safety Director

CITY OF MEDFORD 
LAUSMANN ANNEX 

200 SOUTH IVY STREET 
MEDFORD, OREGON 97501 

BUILDING SAFETY DEPARTMENT 
ROOM 277 

TELEPHONE (541) 774-2350 
FAX  (541) 774-2575 
E-MAIL: 
bldmed@ci.medford.or.us 

Page 92



! (

!4

!4

!4!4 !4

!4 !4
!4!4

!4

!4 !4

!4

G!.
967
3/4M

908
3/4M

907
3/4M

925
3/4M

951-953
3/4M

924
UnknownM

952
3/4M

3263
3/4M

3265
1M

875
3/4M

874
3/4M

898
3/4M

895
3/4M

Reduced

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C1'
' C

1'
' C

372W12D6200 372W12D6300 372W12D6400 372W12D6500 372W12D6600
372W12D6700

372W12D6800

372W12D6900372W12D7000372W12D7100372W12D7200372W12D7300
372W12D7300

372W12D7400

372W12D8400372W12D8402
372W12D8402

6'' DI 1984

H4174

6'' GV10144Lawnsdale Rd

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
varietyofsources.MedfordWaterCommissioncannotacceptresponsibilityforerrors,
omissions,orpositionalaccuracy.Therearenowarranties,expressedorimplied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

±
Water Facility Map

for
City of Medford

Planning Application:
AC-20-227

Scale:
0 30 6015

Feet

1:800

Date: 8/24/2020
Path:R:\Departments\GIS\MXDs\Brian's Projects\AC-20-227 - ArcGIS Pro Project.aprx

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Southern Oregon Subaru
Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

Blm Entrance

Chevy Way

Automation Way

Lawnsdale Rd

Gilman Rd

Lawnsdale Rd

Bi
dd

le
Rd

4

3

2

1

AC-20-227
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 500250 Feet

Legend
Subject Area

Tax Lots372W12D TL 7000, 7001, 7200, 7300

±

±

Date: 8/7/2020
Page 96


	Agenda 
	20.1 Final Order AC-20-205 Creekside Village
	Commission Report AC-20-205 Creekside Village
	Exhibit A-2 Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit C-1 Floor Plans
	Exhibit D-1 Elevations


	20.2 Final Order AC-20-226 Ritchie Trucking
	Commission Report AC-20-226 Ritchie Trucking
	Exhibit A-1 Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit N Rogue Valley Sewer Service Report
	Vicinity Map


	30.1 Minutes from the October 2, 2020, meeting 
	50.1 Staff Report AC-20-227 Southern Oregon Subaru
	Exhibit A Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit B Site Plan
	Exhibit C Floor Plans
	Exhibit D Elevations
	Exhibit E Roof Plan
	Exihbit G Applicant's Findings
	Exhibit H Public Works Staff Report
	Exhibit I Fire Dept Report
	Exhibit J Medford Water Commission Memo
	Exhibit K Jackson County Roads Letter
	Vicinity Map




